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April 14, 2025 

City of McKinney 

Planning Department 

221 N. Tennessee 

McKinney, Texas 75069 

RE:  Site Plan – SP22-0017 Expiration and Renewal 

 Cotton Mill Redevelopment 

 +/-32.10 Acres, City of McKinney, Texas 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. respectfully submits the attached site plan package for the City of 

McKinney’s review and re-approval given that the previously approved SP22-0017 is set to expire on 

July 18, 2025. The Design Exceptions and variances listed are the same as those included in the 

original approval of this Site Plan on July 18, 2023.” 

 

The subject property is approximately 32.1 acres located at the southeast corner of the intersection of 

Highway 5 and Elm Street. The property is zoned MTC – McKinney Town Center district, and is owned 

by Cotton Mill Partners LTD. 

 

The proposed project involves replatting and development of multiple blocks of vacant single-family 

lots, along with the redevelopment of Lot 1, Block 1 of the Cotton Mill Addition. The site plan includes 

multi-family apartment buildings, artist lofts, office buildings, and recreational space for public use. 

This site plan requires off-site utility improvements, off-site roadway extensions, replatting, right-of-way 

vacations and dedications, and variances to the existing MTC zoning requirements. 

A portion of the Property falls within the Cotton Mill Edge that has a three-story height limitation.   A 

variance is requested to extend the Cotton Mill Core westward between Anderson Street and Burrus 

Street to accommodate a four-story office building and portions of two multi-family buildings. 

Within the Cotton Mill Core, including the area within the extension requested above, a variance to 

increase building heights is requested to allow (i) a five-story urban multi-family building that wraps a 

structured parking facility proposed to be constructed in Phase 1 and (ii) three seven story urban multi-

family buildings that have five stories of apartments on top of two-story parking podiums proposed to 

be constructed in Phases 2-4.  The building for which the five-story building height variance is 

requested is bounded on the east by Puckett Street, the DART right-of-way and major industrial 

developments and is otherwise interior to the Project, being more than 350 feet from the closest single-

family residences to the south.  The southernmost two multi-family buildings for which a height variance 

to allow seven stories (two stories of podium parking with five stories of apartments on top) is requested 

are located no less than 140 feet from the nearest single family residences to the south and are 

shielded from view primarily by three story townhomes proposed to be constructed along Burrus Street 

as part of the Project, as well as a six foot fence with canopy trees proposed to be constructed along 



Page 2 

kimley-horn.com 2600 N. Central Expressway, Suite 400, Richardson, TX 75080 (214) 617-0535 

 

the southern boundary line of the Project.  A Perspective Study by O’Brien Architects is enclosed that 

provides both a sight line exhibit and renderings of views from the upper floor of the multi-family 

buildings onto the single-family residences and from the single-family residences to the buildings.  As 

depicted in the study, the visual impact of the proposed buildings for which this variance is sought is 

greatly mitigated by the fence, canopy trees and townhomes that will be constructed between the 

single-family residences and the referenced buildings.  The third multi-family building for which a height 

variance to allow seven stories (two stories of podium parking with five stories of apartments on top) is 

requested is interior to the Project and shielded on the west by a proposed four-story office building.  

The distance from Amscott Street on the western edge of the Project to this building is in excess of 250 

feet.  This Project is designed as a high-density, mixed-use development that incorporates the current 

elements of the historic Cotton Mill creating a sustainable focal point for live, work, play in the 

southeastern sector of McKinney.  The requested height variances will allow those structures to 

accommodate up to approximately 1,200 apartments that are necessary to create a critical mass of 

on-site residents who will support the on-site office, restaurant and retail proposed within this mixed-

use project. 

With this Site Plan, we are requesting the following Design Exceptions: 

1) Primary entrances are required to be along priority A streets. There is no available priority A 

street on this lot. Primary entrance is located on a priority B street. 

2) Primary entrances are required to be along priority A streets. There is no available priority A 

street on this lot. Primary entrance is located facing the service street along the central paseo 

between the multifamily buildings, maintaining clear view of the cotton mill public areas. 

3) All frontages of parking structures located on pedestrian priority A and B streets shall be lined by 

active commercial uses on the ground floor to a minimum depth of 25’. Parking structure is lined 

with residential units. 

4) All frontages of parking structures located on pedestrian priority A and B streets shall be lined by 

active commercial uses on the ground floor to a minimum depth of 25’. Parking structure is 

screened with perforated metal panels with openings mimicking the architectural language of the 

residential facades above. 

5) Relief from at least 80% of each façade facing pedestrian priority A and B streets being externally 

finished by no more than 2 materials on any single façade. Façade faces a priority A street. 

6) Relief from at least 80% of each façade facing pedestrian priority A and B streets being externally 

finished by no more than 2 materials on any single façade. Façade faces a priority B street. 

7) Relief from all building facades of residential buildings fronting pedestrian priority A streets shall 

have transparent windows covering at least 30% of each such façade. Façade faces a priority A 

street. 

8) Drive isles not allowed on priority A streets. Entrance/Exit into garage are designed on a priority A 

street. 

9) All frontages of parking structures located on pedestrian priority A and B streets shall be lined by 

active commercial uses on the ground floor to a minimum depth of 25’. Parking structure is 

screened with perforated metal panels with openings mimicking the architectural language of the 

office facades above. Storefront windows are used along priority A and B streets to further hide 

parking garage structure and maintain a commercial feel to pedestrians. 
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10) All ground floor office building facades along all pedestrian priority A streets shall have 

transparent storefront windows covering no less than 65% of said façade area. All parking garage 

openings on ground level are covered with storefront windows along the priority A street. 

11) All ground floor office building facades along all pedestrian priority B streets shall have 

transparent storefront windows covering no less than 65% of said façade area. All parking garage 

openings on ground level are covered with storefront windows along the priority B street. 

12) Relief from the residential transition standards requiring a maximum height of two stories within 

25 ft of existing single family detached residential uses. 6ft fence will not be provided at this 

location. 

13) Relief from the residential transition standards requiring a maximum height of two stories within 

25 ft of existing single family detached residential uses. 6ft fence will be provided to screen the 

artist lofts from the single family residential. 

14) Building is closer than 5’ of the proposed ROW or Property Line. 

15) Exceeds maximum height allowed by Cotton Mill Core zone. 

16) Reduction in landscape setback from 20’ to 10’ at western side of office – 2 Parcel 

If you have any questions regarding the submittal package, please contact me at (972)-776-1788 or 

Raphael.Cobarrubias@kimley-horn.com. 

Sincerely,   

 

 

Raphael Cobarrubias, P.E.  

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.  

  

Attachments:    

  

- Site Plan  

- Landscape Plan  

- Façade Plan  

- Tree Mitigation Plan 

- Preliminary Utility Plan  

- Preliminary Drainage Plan  

- Parcel Information  

- ROW Exhibit 

- Design Exceptions Exhibit 


